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WHAT IS {T ALL ABOUT ?

The contents of this report sheuld be of interest to parents, teachers,
educationalists, legislaiors and all goups and organisations concerned with
the care of chiidren and adiilts.

it 15 2 storv about a teacher whoe dared to complain within a rigid, autonomous
system and lhe attitude of that system towards him.

It is about the rights of children narents and teachers in our scheo!s and
instituttons rfo comp/am and be peard

The siory raises some very serious issues that should be of concern to the
European Community as a whole and should not be ighored

Are the compiaints procedures within a school or institution ciearly structured
and defined for ALL ? Stating clearly -

That ait persens have aright to compiain about unfair treatment.
1ne school's policy on complainis grocedure.

Who can compiain.

taken seriously and acted upon promptly ?

Ara nrotassionals frained to deal wth different kinds of compiaints ?
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A personal report 2bout the situation and conditions at
the Jueen Victoria Schoof {QVYS), Dunbiane.

A letter from a concerned teacher to parents.
Sketch
teiter fom the SCED Minister of Education.

Letter from the Ombudsman. Parliamentary
CTommissioner.

Reply to Ombudsman - letter to J Wallace MP (in part}.

Cooy of the ietier irom the European Parliameni.
Renly to the Tyropean Pariiament.

SKeich

. A typicat newspaper repcrt denving Bullying at QYS.

Recent ietter irom the SGED
Sketch
GVS revision word-puzzie

A finat nets to parents and zuardians

letter iorm the headmaster expiainng what had hapoened

in the sches! sinca 1lefl, written o me directly the as a
result of the action 2f my MP by raquest of the MOD).




-

'ﬁ'v rt concerning thm conuittans and circumstances at the Queen Victoria
Sehodly 8 Boarding schocl f6r. the.sons of Scottish servicemen and women,
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fesus!. the care of chlldr.ﬂlln #thools and toarding schools,

-Placc:*?ha Quesn Victoria Sehool (QVS) Qunrblara, M.0.0. establishment,

’902§Uﬂ?iL April 1992, i

>Iimdﬁ§:#iod- August 1989 t&- OQ:nnbor 1991

Hau ' ’§§r' Mr. Julian Hankifgen.

agdrgilit’ Tha Queen Victorlianthﬁdl Dunblare. Scotland, FKIS QJY
DRh1e¥Dolmisntoner: IAN Lﬁﬂu [ 8 Sltretary ~f State for Scotland,

l@mei; fﬁnnﬁs' Saveral men’ &umpoild tha body of appointed Commissioners -
Htr*WMpfity s Commissionara:lfrom various professional backgrounds, some
LA

re/heads, headmastirs and ex-HMIs., Some of them held similar
palxti hl in other schools’ lﬂ Scoilnnd)

ancoA1¢QV1ng the school lnd the publfcation of the HMI's firat report I
have sndeavored to work thidugh official channels for my case to be heard,
Hy Hﬁ%ﬂﬁ J Wallace, has takan. thd matter to the Ombudaman (Parliamentary

foner, [PCI) and I took the tase to the European Parliament
ﬁbltf‘lbn 232/93) in March, 1993; the resulls »f these enquiry, are
unsatigfactory to say the 1eaat, {enclozed)

i shtii explain clearly and as concisaly 29 nossible what happened leading
uo tdxny final departure from QV8.on the % 12.91: these are brief details,

REASQM TD COMPLAIN

1. I Utl appointed ags teachlr td QVS in the summar of 1989 to teach physics
and s#l-up electronicas for 85 ahd S6; in the November of that year I was
appointed as housemaster of Cumdingham Hauz2 caring for about 60 boys
batwean 1! and 15 I had worked it a bove coarding school for five years
before this and had aome substantial evcerienze, As time went by I became
anratt!ngly unhappy about  {he emwticral ing ceychological welfare of the
bove And the general conditl®ha 1fi‘the stnoal. [ thought the MDD would
offef the beat care of all but it slowiy dswnsd on me that 1 was sadly
migtaken. ! had complained along-with other staff about certain incidents
and corditions, both verbally and in tand-writing to the headmaster; the
c“molliﬂtl took the form of notes, tvpa-written letters or simply verbal
ccmmunicattons The complliﬂtl Onfe &0 freauent they seem to bacome the
order of:. the day - and no one’ whaned alavrmed anymore, There were many
persorial notes to the headmamtei, The atuoschere was not that of a happy
d!tabliihmnnt boys afraid o walk along ths achoel corrider, clinging,
patrifipd to the walls: children living 11 fear everday and afraid of being
ridi:ui&d for cowardice; boys attacked in their beds while aleeping by
blder bbys who came 'to puniigh them'' not just bullying but protecticn
raceebll;"a regime which soma boyd and =one staff called “TRADITION" and
auite ndemeal: used, (illed ééndomg fo.ng 1n the totlets at 02:20, after an
aloar By and a youngar bay:gcuttied swav down the corrider [(x2 occasions]:
i -inced the tondoms in an snvelope 2 ~ut :t on the head’'s desk first

v 1) naxt morning - no redponse  etc =mo An evaggeration T I am



lxalking about seriocus bullying, serious bruising and who knows how much
dnap emotional damage doni Qspncillly to the young primary children.

RE#LI!ATIDN Of DEEPER UNDERLVING PRDBLEHS

i. !punt much time in the- Houu. otfice {n the early hours of the morning
when boys felt free Lo come to.me with their problems and fears, I have
four ¢hildren of mv own (ard Awg grand daughters) and I have had experience
in toulislling adolescentis tut ‘I was unprepared to deal with this, I felt
1n-&¢qusto 1 found it hard . to iﬂtofpfet wvhat the boys were trying to tell
. @, “the-para-language, but Bomething was very wrong indeed - 1 started to
fnll hfrlid nysalf, mainly. ﬁitlﬂ!d { was reaponaible and had no one to turn
te fﬂfahtip and advice. The voics of my experience and intuition told me
‘ail wla not well ' and somdthing must be done,

{_)

:ATTITUDE OF OTHER STAFF

.3, (ld. the lst and 2nd rnpurtnI

Some Wtutf knew little of diher schools and conditions, their experience
was iitited, I had been aroiind and I could tompare standards, One member of
staff:told me that QVS was ‘'rormal and hemlthy'sfor a boys school and if [
tolds atlyone about the conditiong in the school he would sue me personally:
he alsd maid ! would breath«the Gfficial Secrets Act and be liable to
prllﬁﬂ;lnd progecution | {kadi¢:this memeber of staff died of a heart
attltgylnd subsequant haad dnjury, after a fall from a laddar Dacamber
‘-1993) _Reports avatlable ftom the SOED.

TELh THE SCHOOL BOARD, THE PTA f ‘WHAT SCHOOL BOARD 7 WHAT PTA 7

A, l .kontacted one of the pardntﬂ and suggested she form an active PTA to
h!ln rbut no reaponas. Parefits vaere afraid even to come and speak to me: on
saveril occasions ! had to tajole parents to come up to the House office
for % cup of tea and a chat; somé were often very nervous,
Scme of the parents were ot seérét missiona (SAS) and I could understand
the reed for security, but 1 felt the atmosphere provided cover for other
clandestine actiona as well | I once asked a worker in the administration
what' the headmaster did with a1l the notes from houzsemaaters. [ was told he
fileg . them all away, Ae I was walking out of the door the administrator
ahouted “in the bin 1", So most of thé xomplaints will been denied, no
~doubt, The reader will no doubt get a different story from the scheel ( if
you write and get a reply 1) and which story you beliave is your choice of
courad,
. Therd:was no real mechanism for change and update, This shows what can
< happ#nwhen parents are exéluded from schools, elither dierectly or
'indthittiy for whatevar r&ﬁson{'

mGROND DAY - THE DAY I RssieNED (19 8,91

S. dﬂ the final day of thd !umm&ﬁ term, Grand Day, (after a sleepless busy
night)' Prince Andrew was the gJest speeker and this was a very important
otcasien. To cut a long stdry short 1 was unable to make it to lunch
because I wos delayed deing my work and thie dieplease the burser,
Brigadier Tweedy, who waw becamg oublically very loud and rude towards me !
I had my job to do and had geruinly delayed, what with glenn garrys.

2.,



uniforms and kilts to ensure the boys were emart and ready for the parade,
but it was one of those days, I replied with equal vehemence to the
Brigadier; but this was not the tcause of my resignation as some believe;
the underlying reasons were far more serious and profound,

I was unhappy with the whole pastoral stet up: the incident with the
brigadier ctould be said to have tipped the balance and I wrote a rather
rushed over polite resignation net having much time to think,

1 WAS ABSENT FROM THE LUNCH AND THE GRAND TOUR OF THE SCHOOL WITH PRINCE
ANDREW — MANAGEMENT'S REACTION

6, My resignation was accepted without guestion and the headmaster
suggested [ leave the school AS SOON AS POSSIBLE, my wife thought we had
until the end the of the next term and she was more devastated than I was,
she was in shock, and I had ta hold her all night, There was no sympathy -
it totally unprofessional and unnecessary to treat us in this way, If the
headmaster had listened with a sympathetic ear and taken SERIOUS note of my
complaints, throughout my period as housemaster, the whole matter could
have been diffused and change could have been implemented in an equal but
less dramatic way - being heard was a problem all staff shared,

My contract stated quite clearly that as a housemaster I must give at least
one terms notice and [ would not break my side of the bargain: before this
the headmaster strongly and sericusly suggested that I get out of the flat
by August (six weeks), Call verbal), I explained that my contract stated
quite clearly ‘one term's notice' at least; the headmaster then said that
OQctober was the end of term Cactually half term break, not the end of term
at all), He played with ideas and called them scemarios, one idea was for
me to leave as soon as possible and I would be paid until the end of
September - then out completely ! 8ut it was some days later when the
headmaster acknowledged the conditions of my contract,

My wife and I felt we were unnecessarily bullied !

7. I had committed it seams the unforgivable sin - what was that 7
Aszzulted a child ? Stole the house accounts ? Assaulted a member of staff
? None of these - the 'crime' was to insult the PR of the school by failing
to turn up at the lunch with the VIP on that day. One is tempted to ask
what sort of values the mamnagement embraced, Maybe it was a good excuse to
get rid of this complaining member of staff 7 1 was never rude to the
headmaster, honest perhaps - mavbe I should have been rude ?

PERSONAL GRUDGES ?

8. It would seem from this that 1 was at odds with the Brigadier Tweedy and
the headmaster — that was not the case at all ! The Brigadier and the
headmaster were usually very kind and sympathetic colleagues and I
had/nothing perconal against them. I had never done anything, (as far as I
know) to offend them before and always worked in harmony with their wishes:
the headmaster's testimeonial given to me seven days before I departed is
evidence of this; but I offended them most seriously and they were most
unsympathetic to me, (copy of testimenial enclosed)




SELF ANALYSIS AND TIME TD THINK

3. Over the summer holidays that followed I had time to think and evaluate
my real underlying reasons for resigning and graphed out what [ thought
should be done in order to improve the school; maybe I would have had
chance to voice my views to one of the appointed Commissioners as soon as [
returned in August, but 1 was never approached - that never happened, I
had a whole term to face and in that time to get ancther job and indeed
somewhere to live, I could have just left and said nothing but I had read
the Child Act of 1989 among other things and realised that I could not
leave without doing something to make the school a better place for the
boys knowing that a so-called formal complaint would be soon forgotten and
lost. I asked myself: who am I really accountable to 7 I am a parent and I
thought I would like to know how my son was treated,

ULTIMATELY WE ARE AS TEACHERS ACTING IN LOCO-PARENTIS, ACCOUNTABLE TO
PARENTS AND PUPILS,

10, 1 saw those boys from the moment they got up in the morning te the last
thing at night; so I know what went on in the school ! Not merely the
outward typical PR image as pictured in the 88C2 programme 40-MINUTES about
QVS school (1991), but the real hidden circumstances,

It slowly dawned on me that in order to make real permanent changes in the
school I had to bring in the parents | :

IN ORDER TO BRING ABOUT A REAL CHANGE I DECIDED TO WRITE TO PARENTS AND
INFORM THEM OF WHAT WAS HAPPENING TO THEIR SONS,

I would go out with a bang but ultimately ]I would bring real, wholesome
beneficial change., I was not the only member of staff that was unhappy with
the treatment of the children; many complaints from all staff were largely
ignored and getting a private audience with acne of Her Majesty's
Commissioners was like seeing a Swiss Red Cross representative inm a Nazi
prigon camp; they were shadowed so closely by the headmaster and the
Brigadier,

THE DANGER OF COMPLACENCY - WARNINGS

11. The HMI warn teachers about the dangers of complacency regarding
complaints of bullying (Action on Bullying, issued to schools by the SOED),
and now I accuse the SOED of being complacent themselves, Tha letter to
parents only gquoted examples of the kind of bullying and abuse that went
on, not the full story; serious bullying and abuse had been going on for
years, (in the 195%0s, although it is doubtful if there is access to a file
on this !) and as far as I know parents as a whole have not had a chance to
speak oqut about my letter, some may never have seen it |

THE FINAL OECISION

12. One of the last communications I had from the headmaster came on the
morning of the 9th of December:! the headmaster called to me across the
school couttyard: " No more notes, please !1 Y, The complaints system had
effectively closed down, After the rather heated discussion with a fellow
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housemaster who threatened to sue me if spoke out about the tonditions in
the school, I made my final decision to post the letter to parents I had
thought of weeks before, I posted the personal letter to parents, (at my
own expense), on the 11,12,91; the letter arrived toc some of the parents on
the 13,12,91,

THE, ....... . HITS THE FAN !

13, On the day I knew that some of the letters were to arrive, I set up an
incident degk in the flat, I had two phonecalls from outraged distressed
parents before I was cut off,

14, Not all parents received the letters; those parents in the UK, perhaps
but those addressed to Germany and abroad were probably intercepted and
never arrived; I suspect that parents were commanded by superior officers
not to read them; possibly an 05 ACT throat,

BREAKDOWN OF TIME AND INCIDENTS - FRIDAY THE 13th OF DECEMBER 1991

15, I was serving my notice to the end of December and was resident teacher
and housemaster, having tenancy of the flat until the 31st of December
1991; the term was due to end on the following smonday and I, as
housemaster, should have been there until each boy from Cunningham House
had safely departed, last boy would go on the Tuesday lunch time the 17th,
As housemaster it was my responsibility to ensure all arrangements for
travel were made and that boys received cash, passports, railtickets and
air tickets to travel safely home for the Christmas period, The house
accounts, passports and tickets were my responsibilty rather than my
property, as I was still housemaster, My wife and my family had moved to
our house in Banffehire at precisely 07-30 that morning of the 13,10,91 and
I was hoping to stay behind to complete my duties according to my contract,
On that crucial day when the letter arrived I was not teaching; about 13-
15hrs I received a strange internal phonecall, which sounded like a bear
growling, which got louder and louder; there were other strange calls also;
I was quite afraid; a stone hit my flat window with some force but as far
as I know nothing was broken and I was not sure which window it was, but 1
felt afraid,

165, At about 13-35hrs I phonsed the porter to tell him that I would be going
out of the buildings, becaucse I felt threatened, and that [ would return
after tea when it became dark, An interview with porter who took the call
will confirm this, I made no commerit whatsoever about relinguishing my
duties, surrendering keys or whatever, but simply that I was leaving
becausze ! felt threatened and that I would return to tend to my duties in
the house after tea, which was part of the normal routine, I did return as
I said [ would at this time, ‘

17. 1 drove ny car out of my parking space, so staff would know I was not

in, and went straight to the police station in Dunblane informing the duty
constable briefly what had happened, I told him I felt threatened and that

5}



I mad informed the porter I was going cut. I then informed the policeman
ihat I was gaing into Stirling and weuld return to the school about 17-30;
k2 made a note of this; at this point I becged off and went to Stirling,

12, 1 did not contact the school from Starling, I walked around Stirling
for some time and then returned to the schocl arocund 17-20hrs, only to find
THE POLICE BASHED THE DOOR OF MY HOME DOWN ! The atmosphere was one of fear
and threat not just for me but for the manazgement too ! They were afraid
teo but of what in particular, to cause them to react so ?

12, The 2llegations made by- the headmazter that I offered to voluntary
relinquish my position as housemaster and hand aver keys ete,, was
supported by a an UNSIGNED STATEMANT FRCM THE SCHOOL LOS and has no
foundation in truth, I believe this is a fabricated lie, But if I did say
such things then why was it necessary to hrezk down my door ? Using the key
would hava been more simple and less expencs:ive ! Maybe the headmaster had
much to wavrry about and over-reacted undes stress ? Or was the decision of
the police, who strange as it seems, have no comments to make about the
break ir, and all documentation is strangelv unavailable,

20, When I went to my flat I observed thzt the door had been forced open
and it was hanging like the hinge was Srcken: all the actount money and
passports had gone, I was concerned and atfrzid to go in but immediatly

wentt to cee the porters to demand an evplze-ztion! I was still a tenant
there; 1t was my hame and the house accoists. passports and personal
property etc, were still there az far == I -new. all counted correct and in
order/up te date, werez thay still ther=? T was annoyed at the breaking down

of my door and the safety of the accounts 2t I found cut later there was
a letter behind the broken door removing we from my post as housemaster

( on what arounds ? I only had four dave =7t pefore I left 1)

SACKED AT HOUSEMASTER | WHY 7 CONTRACT *FCWEN — ND ANSWERS OR EXPLANATIONS
21, the porter told me to Qo to the Hzzouzerzer's office and so I did,
finding the headmaster with the new bur=z: Caionel Tapp, ready to receive
me: I felt afraid to say the least, rot Zweczuse of the letter I had written
to parents. I was sure ] had told the <vruin and acted correctly under the
circumstances.

22, The HM asked me questions and ths nuvser. CGolonel Taonp, carefully wrote
down what I caid in ancwer, I asked Rin ite where—abouts of the accounts
and ather documents, he replied and s=zid tiwey were safe; the headmaster
then asked who else I had told or writiern o and under the circumstances
would I 1ik=2 to Jeave now, Becuase [ feoit =0 threatened I said I would like
tc leave scon, since my door had no logr 2o it, (and as you may guess 1
f=lt very threatened}); he then asked mz f I had received the letter from
tim written on that day, it wae behir? -+3 Joor, I replied and said, NO, I
had not., (The letter was releiving ms 7 v duties, copy availabley,

22 Colonel Tapp then agreed to zaceoncimy w2 to the flat and help me load
mv car with my belongings; as wa walls: :z:ross the parade ground to the
aozrtment. a policeman appeared armd Zol:v:ziy ssked my name; he then asked
m- to acconcany him to the police st - ~an 1 had loaded my possessions
i vthe zzr, I wase chadowed hy 2 lzrc: 2-l-2znan all the time, what woulds




have happened to me if I had refused to go I know not but I felt like I was
being arrested. How would the reader feel if your door had been bashed down
with a sledge hammer BY THE POLICE and you were asked tc help them with
their enquiries ? WHAT ON EARTH HAD THE HEADMASTER TOLD THE POLICE I HAD
DONE IN CORDER FOR THEM TO ACT SO DRASTICALLY 7

24, When we got to the flat, I found the headmaster’'s letter behind the
broken door, Colonel Tapp was very kind and helped we to carry my things
from the two storey appartment; while I was packing the policemen followed
close by, To this day I have not had any answer as why this was

done ! ( police report on school, strangely unnaccessible), I believe the
headmaster overreacted and made a big mistake,

25, My car was hurriedly loaded up with my things. (I could hardly change
gear!); then the policeman asked me to follow bim down to the police
station, I felt this was a polite arrest,

26, There, I waited for about 15 minutes until an inspector came from
stirling, I was then invited to go to the interview room, and for the next
hour or so | was questioned by the police, The policemen on the reading
copy of the letter I had written to parents, seemed surprised, relaxed
their manner and started to show some concern for me, When I asked them if
I had committied a crime they replied and said, 'no sir,you have not', (what
on earth they had been told about we God Knows)., They suggested [ stay
over-night in a hotel before making the journey home, but I decided I would
drive straight to Banffshire that night and arrived thome at about 03-30 hrs
on the 14/12/91, exhausted,

27, 1 know it was a very serious letter to write to parents, and I believe
I had goed reason to complain in THIS WAY, but 1 was shocked at the
treatment meted out to me, The M,0.0 said that the Headmazter and police
had acted to protect myself and my family (letter available), but it was
well known by all that my family were not there;a large removal van outside
the flat, earlier that day of which the porters knew af ,They also broke my
door down when they knew I was not in the school grounds,THE PORTERS AND
POLICE KNEW WHERE [ WAS, AND THAT 1 WOULD RETURN AFTER DARK,17-30hrs,

THE BEST I COULD HOPE FOR

228, What I reported in my letter to parents was the honest truth, not an
exaggeration ! [ believe there were other abuses taking place in the
school; 1 hoped that the professiornals at the Scottish office in
cocperation with social services arnd the parents would sort this out, [
was wrong ! I asssumed the whole fruth would come out in an army
investigation or HMl's meetings with the whole body of parents(?) which
nevar happened as far as I know: but the closing of their ranks proved to
very effective,

OFERATION 'COVER UP' - ‘THE OLD SCHOOL TIE'
29, One cannot be blamed for thinking that the swift action of the SOED in

January 1992 was largely to caver aovar their own maladministration and lack
of clear policies for ALL educational institutions in its audit area,



Recent research on bullying in schools has revealad that one of the main
prablems in schools is that bullying and abuse is often PLAYED OQUWN; for
instance the use of the word ‘alleged' bullying in the HMI report, which
strangly suggests that the bullying did not really exist and that its all a
wild exaggeration, NOT SO even in the slightest sense, I strongly believe
that the situation at QVS was 'played down' ( see first report of May 6
1952 §2,2) by the HMI, and believe there is a touth of ‘the old school tie'
and a deliberate silence to cover maladministration on the part of the SOED
and the MOD and passibly other angencies involved, But leocking after and
caring for children in the 1990z iz not a matter to be taken lightly, nor
can we hide child abucse behind the Official Secrets Act or any form of
officialdom - this is surely a very dangerous thing to do ! THE HMI NEVER
INVESTIGATED THE BULLYING OR SOUGHT THE OPINION OF THE KEY PARTNERS - THE
PARENTS: perbaps they were/are, afraid — of the truth | Was this a
"thorough' investigation ? The motives for a cover up are well founded !

30, I was never sent a copy of the H M,I's report, even after phoning the
office twice (they seem to be gquite rare); eventually a friend, living on
Unst, Shetaland managed to get a copy sent to her after phoning the
Scottish Office twice. A friend in England phoned twice and eventually
recieved a copy, The HMI report of May 6th 1992 and the follow up report of
March 1993 recommended sweeping changes and in September 1992 a new AHT was
appointed, an experienced gquidence teacher, in charge af pastoral care,
Training for all staff with regard to guidance and care arranged;
committees and working parties were set up to formulate new policies for
the shool - and LD AND BEHOLD - THE INCLUSION AND INVOLVEMENT OF PARENTS !
Mzny nther changes have taken place but its difficult to know precisely -
maybe it is still a closed system ?

Rather big expensive changes considering my supposed 'exaggerations',
(ref 8§62.2, HMI first report) ?

————

31, I registered as unemployed the following monday and was told,
eventually, that the grounds for my resignation form QVS were unjustified
and that I was not eligible for unemployment benefit; this decision was
based on comments from my former amployer, QUS, eight weeks later [
acauired a temporary teaching position in Shetland wher I am now
permanently employed,

REFLECTIONS - WHAT I EXPECTED TO HAFPEN

32. To be honest I thought this treatment was apalling., I expected to be
ralled into the colours room and face a group of Commissioners or some
officials and defend my action: I DID NOT WANT TO 'HIT AND RUN': but I was
never interviewed | And what is more from that day to this I have not heard
a word from any parents, staff or anyone comnected with the school-——-the
cilence is deafening and very suspicious !

ANY REGRETS 7

33, In my time at QV5 I reached the pinnacle of my career, as housemaster
and teacher of physics and electrcnics; I worked hard to do a good job and
I nust say, despite the circumstances that aroze, I enjoyed my work



otherwise (see testimonials given to me a few days before I left); but you
cannot teach unhappy children ! I gave it all up and brought considerable
hardship on myself and my family who understand, and we have no regrets: my
oldest daughter at home has finished her Standard Grades now and is now
attending Andersen High in Lerwick doing her highers (weekly boarder), and
the youngest daughter haz started her Standard Grades at Baltasound Junior
Hiph School where I teath maths and science, The standards of care in
Shetland are in my view, excellent,

34, Disappointment though in the Scottish Office -~ I will find it hard to
swallow anything they say in the future; my respomsibility is to the
parents and pupils and what I dos/did, ig for them, and hopefully what I did
will help to formulate or update new policies to prevent the QVS gituation
aricing again - no regrets, what-so-ever,

LESSONS TO BE LEARNED FOR ALL

35. But the issue raised by the QVS affair is much wider and should be of
interest to all the educational communities across Europe and all those
interested in standards of care in boarding and other institutions,

The complaints procedure in the school was ineffective, inefficient and
inadequate. There was no active PTA or impartial body of elected body of
govenors NO SPECIFICALLY TRAINED GUIDENCE TEACHERS, I did not even have a
job desription ! There was no other way to get something done fast;
internal complaints were absorbed and lost as so many have over the years,
(several of the staff in the school read my letter to parents before [
posted it off, and approved; sadly, not one member of staff stood by me, as
far as I know, and I have had no communication whatsoever from that day to
this.

36, I know we live in a tough world and children need an grow up in an
environment of discipline, but there is a time to be tough and discipline
can take many forms - the aim is to promote self discipline in the end not
the sort where older boye are allowed to punish and bully younger boys
because it just happens to be the 'tradition', Those who are bullied
become bullies,{ and teachers often turning a blind eye because they were
victims of bullying themsalves); 1t is the old etermnal circle, Children
must be allowed to grow uwp in an atmosphere of learning and family love, to
understand and be tolerant of the differences of others, whether it be
culture, race, intellect, atheltic prowess, big nose, large ears or
othevrwise, Statistics show that boarding pupil rolls are falling - could it
be that boarding education needs a face lift and the Tom Brown Schooldays
Image still lingers ? We must view the QVS affair as a lesson for all.

WAITING FOR THE SYSTEM TO WORK

37, After the publication of the first repart 1 wrote MPs Magaret Ewing and
James Wallace in early June 1932; there has been an exchange of letters and
months of waiting in between. In September 1993 after extensive
correcpondence Mr J Wallace MP, took my case, at my request to the
Ombudeman, the PC; the PC declared not to have the power to look into M,0.D
or police files but if all is well there should be nothing to hide and
everything should be upfront and honest, In March 1393 I wrote to the
European Court and subsequently to the ET of Human Rights (the answer to

9.




my petition and reiated letters are enclosed along with my reactions), It
seems that they think that the longer they leave me and ignore the issues I
have raised, the faster they just will just go away. Not so | [ cannot
accapt that this matter is closed ! I suspect someone or office is being
protected, but who protects the children ? And what about the abused
teacher ?

2%, When abuse of children in institutions of care takes place (which can
take many forms) and is exposed, sometimes unreported for many years, the
public ask how can this happen for so long and go unreported ? A case about
two years age comes to mind where the head of the institution himself was
abusing children in various ways and the staff knew about it ! Why did they
not report the situation ? Answer fear, Fear of losing their job, pensions
and future career prospects., But when someone does stands up and speaks out
what happens ? How far do these so-called closed ranks extend ? And who is
being protected ? Should we not be concerned about protecting children and
national/European standards 7

39. If I was wrong about the conditions and 'alleged’ bullying then surely
as a prefessional 1 should be chastised/disciplined; why have so many
changes taken plare and s0 rapidly ?

MORE AMAZING FACTS

THE FEES PER PUPIL AT QVS EXCEEDED THE FEES FOR ETON; PARENTS PAID A
NOMINAL FEE OF £100-00 PER YEAR, the rest subsidised by public money: THE
SCHQOL RUNNING COST ARE estimated €13 Million a year ! Why is it they
could not provide adequate pastoral care for those sons of Scottish service
men 7 When I was housemaster [ received a bill for furniture broken over
one manth for over £800~-00 FOR MY HOUSE ALONE: what went on in the other
hous=s. is similar; in one weekend a liberal low estimate of £20,000-00 of
damage was done ! Supervicion did not zeem a priority in the school,
Inadequate supervision was mentioned in the HMI report..., And more than
this,.,,. no wondeyr the MOD do not want to open their files up !

40, to summarice my oblections:

(a) How ig it that the substandard unacceptable stardards at QVS could be
allowed to exist in a school in the audit area of the Sottish Office ?

(B) How independent is a an independent school ? Should standards not be
consistent in this very sensitive area of care ?

(c) should there not be a clear, well detined policy for complaining about
sub-standard conditions in schoels,2 fixed agreed format of procedure ?

£d) Education is a partnership and parents are “key partners" in that
partnerehip (according to the message given out by the SOED), Should
not parents be included in formulating school policies that involve the
care of their children ? .

(e} (In the letter I asked parents to sit their children down and tell

their parents themselves what sort of treatment they received nor phone

CHILDLINE number, NOT ON DISPLAY AMYWHERE ELSE IN THE SCHOOL. What is the

recpoinge to this 7 I KNOW there are mzpy angry parents who either, know

little of what rezlly happened or know the facts but are afraid to speak

1.




out against their employee and fearful official groups., ALL PARENTS OF QVS
pupils should be allowed to respond, without fear, in the spirit of true
democracy, and not just a 'selected' few ! I would like the boys and their
responsible parents to tell their own story to alleviate any psychological
damage that has been inflicted which may emerge in future years as they
grow up to help to avoid such a gituation re-ocurrring again,)

(f) If education is a partnership, can parents complain and object to the
treatment of their children should it not conform to medern standards ?
After I resigned in June 1991 the headmaster and the Brigadier (the
complaints system) were more concerned about getting me out of the flat and
school buildings within six weeks rather than discover the deeper
underlying reasons for my wanting to leave,) What kind of values should the
mangement of a school cultivate ?7

(@) When I resigned in June no clear explanation was sought as to the real
underlying reasons for my resignation, Surley someone in such a sensitive
position in the care of young people should be encouraged to be specific as
to the reasons for his/her resignation ?

(h) to whom is a teacher ultimately accountable to apart from pupils ?

(i) If my original resignation had been handled professionaly and skilfully
by the management team with correct order of priorities, and complaints
listened to and taken seriocusly, changes could have taken place and the
whole business of baving to write to parents could have been avoided,
diffused,

41, The principle here is not simply a personal one but is in the interest
te the nation as a whole and the public ought to know what happened in
Queen Victoria School, Dunblane in the time prior to and including December
1981 and circumstances of my resignation, to ensure and consolidate a need
for high standards and professionalism in the care of the young in our
schools and teachers and parents chould be given a fair hearing,

42, Before a thild can learn she/he must be happy: this surely is the
ultimate right of every child, Some may say that this is a lot of
gentimental fuddy-duddy - I think not: give a cthild a good start and a
balanced disciplined envirament and you set him/her up for life - those
formative years are vital ! No child should have to run the gauntlet of the
bully and suffer abuze of any kind., I know as a trained professional that
when a child is seriously subjected to persistent bullying something dies
ineside him only to emerge in adult life as self hate or aggression and deep
rooted psychological / behavioural praoblems,

43, Her Majestys Inspectorate of Schools must be seen to be carrying out
their own recommendations to PROTECT CHILDREN, They must be without
repreach when they come under the public magnifying glass if they are to
retain any credibilty, I strongly suspect there is something very wrong
here, a serious blunder that is causing so much embarrassment they are just
hoping it will all just go away., Mavbe the real truth of what happened will
never be trully known, but justice has its own voice and speaks in its own
time,
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Changes, however, have been made within the school: but no comments or
explanations have been precsented explaining how those conditions came to
exist for so long in the first place in the audit area of the SOED,

Is The QVS an example of how the govermment care for children in schools ?
If so then is it any wonder that parents and pupils are ‘'silent' or have
been silenced in scme way,

I have said and done enough abouyt the QVS affair, ity now up to those

responsible people and groups to see the matter through using all-round,
fair and correct procedure,

What follows is a selection of letters from a number of many varied
correspondenices and exchanges regarding the conditions at QVS and the
treatment meted out to me by the school management, SOED and MOD over a
periocd of two and half years,

The first letter being a copy of the original letter written and posted to
57 parents of Cunningham House. In hindsight I now consider this to be a
rather mild description of life at QVSE, but nevertheless sufficient to
alert any caring teacher or parent to unsatisfactory conditions in a school
of the 1990s%, containing, I believe, a serious undercurrent of words

uncooken or unwritten - a story that only the pupils through their parents
coulld corroborate.




pute: There are {our houges

CUNNINGHAM HOUSE N
QL':’L’N VICTORIA SCHOOL
DUNBLANE FK15 OJY

TEL. 0786 - 822288

G HARRISON
HOUSEMASTER EX. 6638
DATE £ (/%9
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Wavel, (primary), Trenchard

and Cunningham. (1{ to 15)

Haig house is 55 and S6

Dear parent, ) R A I

As you well know I have resigned as Cunningham house master
and will leave QVS on the.17/12/91.1 thought you bave a right to know
the real reason why I resigned and what 1s going on at QVS.You have a
right to koow how your sons are being treated here,and the state of the
schaol. I have taught for 7} years in boarding schools and I bhave never
seen anything quite like this,Education takes a very low priority and
the pastoral supervision 1s serlously short staffed.

I am appalled at the bullying and abuse of boys by other
boys; Many reports from staff are just brushed under the carpet,and
nothing i1s done about 1t, bullying is ASSAULT,a criminal offepce and
these boys should be expelled.This 1is my last clance to do something far
the boys.As a caring teacher and housemaster,l have dopne my utmost to
ensure the emotional and psycholagical welfare of your son.It could be a
good school 1f the management got their act together, but 1t seems they
are a law unto themselves,

As a parent myself,I believe you have a right to know and demand an
explanation.

In the last week I have investigated yet more reported
incidents of bullying of younger boys by Halg bays.lbha three first years
Interviewed tagether, were petrified that I would reveal their pames to
you apd others in the school for fear of reprisals. I shall call then
X, Y and Z.

The buys named elght Hailg boys:they sald there were others
but they did not know their names.The boy X, began ta relate:” well
sir,it works like this;as we walk by the Haig study area at the bottom
of the staircase,a2 Halg boy would shout, 'Eh, coma here you',those who
went in were treated in various ways that varied fraom day to
day, sometimes a DA, (painful thump in the arm),other times WWF
moves, (wrestling backbreaker, where boys are thrown against the
wall, 6 quite violently, sir);winders, where a Haig boy will place his bhand
acruss a first year's mouth and hold him as shown {n fig.l1l,ihen another
boy would punch him in the stomach to wind him, Arm benders ar more like
arm breakers,are also a favourite, they really hurt you sir!The boy Y
said that this bad gone on since the beginning of term and he dare not
tell.He sald he had learned pot to answer them when they called but ran
as-fast as be could,afraid to look behind.All boys agreed that first

. years were: .punched and kicked around,ridiculed for crying and tbreatened

\ . with mors for telling.All three verified that some boys had had shampoo

; sqbirted dowa tbhelr throats,while their noses were held, and some boys
were prevented, deliberately from breathing."

fig.1 \ £ig.2

One boy was pamed by all three as having a specialism:drumstick;in
which he is very skilled.In prep he would rap their Xnuckles very
hard. This is a serious assault!If a teacher did this he could be

~
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dismissed and convicted!Boy X saild the drumstick expért once hit bhim on
the head withk a drum stick sp hard that his head was really sore for
abput two weeks.

The boys X and Y said boy Z was hit everydsy 1n chapel because he was
big. Incidently all three boys are very good responsible bays;the kind of
boy you would want at QV. ' ‘ '

Other bays tell me that a lot of bullying takes place at the CCF, where
older bays play sergeants and officers;a kick between the legs 1s
common. fo complain betrays the tough guy image,and the complaints are
often ignored, the boys tell me. Hailg boys were praised as
protectors:Jamie Baird and Crsig McRenzie.

It 1s not just first years, but second and third years are subjected to
this.] related the case of David NcNillan,recently;bhe was called 1in
because he missed his ‘day’,and told to get dowa on all fours, (£fi1g 2.);as
he did this,a Haig boy kicked him so bhard in the ribs,David said he
passed out for about 15 seconds.He then felt he must go to hospital and
told sister he had fallen.I wonder how many ‘falls’,are really
accidental falls? I usually leave the boys to wash and shower in
private, but on seeing the many bruises,] often wondered ir they were, as
they said, just sports Injuriles.

It is so difficult to get the truth out of boys,what 1s going on that is
unreported!? . '

These Haig boys regularly put boys on ‘days’ and they arae not
prefects, They bully first years because they are small and cannot hit
back!! The classical BULLY.Is this opne of those proverbial 'Haig
FPrivileges’,chiselled on tablets of stone? Its beer going on for a long
time.
Vhen the boys were telling me this I thought of the BBC 2,'40 minute
programme’,on QV school,aund that IN REALITY the school 1s more of echoes
of ‘Tom Brown’s Schoal Days'.Last year when I was 1n the process of
sorting out a serious case of bullying,a third year boy ir the house
said: "Sir, you do pot understand;there Is a special way at QVS of
dealing with boys;we sort them out among ourselves;we have our
methods. This is a long tradition and 1its been going on faor
years;bullying is good and keeps the boys im order, because staff can't
use the strap amymore”.A third year,alleged to ‘beat the grub’' out of
boys, (hiiting them so bard that they relinquish thelr tuck),sald:but
sir,this 1Is the way things are done here;I got it In VWavell and now its
my turn. WVeaklings go under and the tough stay an top”.
There is something very wropg about this attitude,which seems to be the
root cause of so much bullying.! am ashamed I have not spoken up
earlier;like the management I Yeel I was blinded by the pomp, vanity and
pride, the swaying kilt and sound of the pipes, the 75% shop front which
1s so misleading to the newcomer. )

So, from this, it appears that the boys consider bullying as a norm;this
is why parents are not told when the boys go home because the boys live
with 1t all the time and knaow no other way!




These Haig boys should be expelled! IT IS WRONG TO KEEP BOYS AT THE
SCHOOL JUST TO KEEP THE NUMBERS UP, T0) GIVE THE APPEARANCE THAT BOYS VILL
BE BOYS AND REALLY ALL IS VELL:ALL IS FAR FRON WELL.

(Theiving in the schaol 1s ;_endenic and 1n my view, cmt of conirol,so many
boys are getting away with' .and supervision 1s so thin on the ground the
boys are able to choose the.u- mment. Locks ara frequently broken open, so
providing lockers 15 not ihe apswer, the answer is to expell the boys,and
certainly NOT sallow them to return just to keep the school pumbers up.)

I suspect that someone on the management team ar a commissioner, with a
boarding school buackground, bave this ridiculus 19tk century notion that
bullying and being bullied,is character building! Because 1t seems to me
that a lot of these reports are just swept under the carpet.

I heard a2 Halg boy say the other day, that they are taking the boys 1n
band to improve the discipline in the school.

(I would like to say a word on bebalf of the commissioners who come
frequently to see the school,and sit patiently and kindly listening to
the staff;but sadly they do not see the school as it really is.They are
victims of shopfrontry!)

AIl this is not new; the management know 1t 1s going on; several members
of starf have reported similar {ncidents toa; - 'aespeclally the
bousemasters in the school and ihe particularly the deputy headmaster.

Ask your son to open up without fear,and tell you himself.In our
societly,abuse should not be classified information anymore;it i1s wNrong
that your son should have lo endure these conditions.,Naybe he 18 one of
the lucky ones and has got away with 1t up until now.Needless to say
your sor Is not a member of the British armed forces.ONE YAY OR THE
OTHER, THIS AGE OLD QV TRADITION HAS GOITvSTOP!

Your son has a right to be happy and en’jay the best years of his life,as
Prince Andrew said on Grand day.

If he is being bullied and 1s afraid of reprisal,and does naot gel help
from the school he sioud tell YOU,or 1f be finds 1t dif.ﬁcult to talk tg
anyone about it,he can phonpe:

CHILDLINUZE ON FREEPHONE 008 1111,

Nost schools have tkis on the school notice board.

This number is avallable to every boy on the Cunninham house notice
board, as from this month.he police inform me that bullying is a
criminal offence and that 11 a child reported being bullled, thay would
be anly too happy to come up to QVS am’i investigate.(One of the worst
forms of bullying 1s NAME-CALLING, tbisl\nental torment and common In the
school.

There will be those that will say I am writing this letter out of malice
and bitterness; they could not be more wrong.I have a genuine cancern for
these boys; 1 write this letter with a clean conscisnce and an hanest
heart.
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Between 1939 and 1945,55 million people gave their lives sp we can be
free and happy, our children and our children's children.Many more have
died since, including those recently in the Gul¥ war,ridding the world aof
the international bully,Saddam Husseln.The sons of Scottish Servicepen
deserve the best treatment and eduvcation in this war memorial school,

I have striven to be a loyal and caring member of staff at QUS;what I
have said reflects my true thoughts and uanderlying maln reason for my
resignation. :

Yours faithfully,
G Hgfﬁga.n' -
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From the Minister for Education and Housing St. Andrew’s House
james Douglas-Hamilton MA LLB MP . Edinburgh EH1 3DG
Telephone 031-556 8400

Jim Wallace Esq MP

House of Commons

LONDON

SW1A 0AA Q‘] November 1993

‘ ‘h D .

VNN

Thank you for your letters of 17 September and 17 November about
representations from your constituent Mr Glenn Harrison, The School
House, Uyeasound, Unst, Shetland regarding the ecircumstances of his
departure as a House Master and teacher at the Queen Victoria School,
Dunblane and his views about the inspection undertaken by Her Majesty's
Inspectors of Schools. I think that I can best respond by explaining the
background to and the nature of the Inspectors' investigations.

In December 1991, following receipt of a letter from Mr Harrison,
Mr Michael Forsyth - then the Minister for Education - asked HM Senior
Chief Inspector of Schools to arrange for the school to be inspected.
HM Inspectors (HMI) enquired into the provision which the school made
for the pastoral care and supervision of pupils, and the associated
management arrangements. (The police enquired into the specific
allegations of bullying.) The HMI enquiry resulted in a report which was
published in May 1992. 1 enclose a copy of that report.

‘ The Inspectors' investigation was conducted in line with normal
procedures and the scope and nature of their activities are outlined on
the first page of the published report. They did not find it necessary to
interview Mr Harrison personally. He was no longer a member of staff at
the time of the inspection in January 1992 having already left to live in
the North of Scotland and, in any case, his views were extensively
expressed In his correspondence with the school. Furthermore,
Mr Harrison's letter of 8 February 1992 to HMI (which you enclosed with
your letter of 17 November) was taken into account by the Inspectors.
In reply he was assured that the points he raised had been thoroughly
investigated. Throughout their enquiry the primary concern of HMI was
to investigate the situation in the school in relation to pastoral care and
pupil supervision rather than to investigate specific allegations of
bullying.

After detailed discussion with HMI, the Board of Commissioners and the
Headmaster accepted the conclusions and recommendations in the HMI
report. In March 1992, they provided HMI with a plan of action for
overtaking the recommendations and in January 1993, the Chairman of the
Board of Commissioners wrote to HM! reporting on the progress made. In

ICH00326.113
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February 1993, HMI revisited the school and concluded that, overall, good
progress had been made towards implementing the recommendations.
Their detailed evaluation of the sitnation was set out in the form of a
letter to the Chairman of the Board of Commissioners which was published
in April 1993. I attach a copy of that letter. In view of the progress
made it is considered that HMI do not require to make a further visit to
the school regarding the report although, of course, it remains liable to
inspection as part of HM Inspectors' national audit of the overall quality
of education in Scotland.

I hope that this explanation is helpful. I note that you have referred
Mr Harrison's complaints to the Parliamentary Ombudsman.

-

.

JAMES DOUGLAS-HAMILTON

ICH00326.113 1.




Parhamentary Commissioner

for Administration

Church House Great Smith Street
London SW1P 3BW

From the Commussioner N

W K Reid CB 071-276 2010/2040

Your Ref: JW/DM
Our Ref: C.750/93

Jim Wallace Esq MP A lo December 1993
House of Commons
London SW1A GAA
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Thank you for your letters of 17 September, 17 November, and 1 December, each
enclosing papers relating to the complaint against the Ministry of Defence (MOD)
and others which your constituent, Mr Glen Harrison of The School House,
Uyeasound, Unst, Shetland ZE2 9DL makes in connection with his departure as a
teacher from the Queen Victoria school at Dunblane in December 1991. I am sorry
you have not had a substantive response until now but it has taken some time to
consider Mr Harrison's complaint in full in the light of the many papers sent to
me.

Bs I understand matters, some time after Mr Harrison had notified the school's
headmaster of his intention to resign from 31 December 1991 he wrote to the
parents of boys at the school warning them that bullying was taking place. On
13 December 1991 he was relieved of his duties as housemaster by the headmaster.
The police who wers called to his flat at the schocl the same day broke down its
door. His charges of bullying were investigated by the police but the Procurator
Fiscal subsequently decided to take no further action. An inspection of the
school -was also undertaken by the Scottish Office's Chief Inspector of Schools
after Mr Harrison had drawn his concerns to their attention. In the 1light of
their report, published in May 1992, changes have been made to this MOD-run
school's procedures. Mr Harrison complains about the way he has been treated and
seeks compensation for it.

I have carefully considered the papers sent to me but, for reasons given below, I
see no basis for an investigation by me.

In so far as Mr Harrison's complaint may be directed at the actions of the police
on 13 December 1991 I cannot help. My sole remit is to investigate complaints of
maladministration on the part of those central government departments and other
public sector bodies which are listed in Schedule 2 to the Parliamentary
Commissioner Act 1967 as within my jurisdiction. The police are not so listed
and it follows that I have no power to investigate complaints against them. The
same is true of the Procurator Fiscal.

I can, in principle, investigate the administrative actions of MOD and the
Scottish Office (including HM Inspectorate of Schools). However, under
paragraph 10(1) of Schedule 3 to the 1967 Act I am expressly precluded from
investigating any action taken in respect of appointments or removals, pay,
discipline, superannuation or other personnel matters in relation to service in
any office or employment, or under any contract for services, in respect of which
power to take action, or to determine or approve the action to be taken, in such
matters is vested in Her Majesty, any Minister of the Crown or any authority
within my jurisdiction. Mr Harrison's own complaint against the school (and by
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extension) MOD, relating as it does to his employment\as a teacher, is caught by
this exclusion which Parliament has put upon my ]urlsdlctlon

Before I could begln an investigation into a complalnt agalnst HM Inspectorate of
Schools - assuming that Mr Harrison intends one - I would need to be shown some
evidence of administrative fault on their part as a result of which Mr Harrison
might reasonably claim to have sustained some unremedied injustice. I would alsc
need to be satisfied that  there is some reasonable prospect of such an
investigation by me producing a worthwhile outcome. .. I do not see these
requirements as met by the papers sent to me -="though the one document that was
m1551ng from them was HM Inspectorate s own report of the inspection. However it
is clear that Mr Harrison's concerns were not  ignored, with HM Inspectors
conducting an inspection of their own and producing a report as a consequence.
Mr Harrison is concerned that he was not interviewed in the course of that
inspection, but that was a matter for the Inspectorate's discretion, as was the
contents of their own report. Under section 12(3) of the 1967 Act I am expressly
debarred from questioning the merits of a Department's discretionary decision
taken in the absence of maladministration. Any reservations Mr Harrison may have
about the contents of the report published in May 1992 are not therefore matters
which I can investigate, though if it had appeared that Mr Harrison's
representations had been ignored matters might have '.been different. I note,
however, that Mr Harrison wrote to the Chief Inspector at the Scottish Office on
8 February 1992 setting out his reasons for leaving " the school and that that
letter was acknowledged by the Senior Chief Inspector on 12 February who assured
Mr Harrison that the points he had raised would be thoroughly investigated. In
the event the report published in May 1992 is said to have concluded that "There
was no evidence of widespread systematic bullying at the school, but some
incidents had occurred". Mr Harrison has expressed his concern that the
inspection might have been biased and that there might have been a cover up, but
there is no evidence in the papers sent to me to support that view. It is clear
from them that the report contained a number of recommendations . for changes - at
the school. It is clear too that HM Inspectors carried out a follow-up
inspection in February 1993, so no evidence of fault on their part has been
shown. That being so I have no grounds on which to question their actions.

I am sorry if this disappoints Mr Harrison. Since I cannot intervene as he asks
I return the papers which you sent, as you requested.

bt
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THE SCHOOLBOUSE *

- —UYEASOUED - - ee—mes o

UHST
SBETLARD ISLANDS
ZE 2 9DL
DATE 19,12,93
NR J VALLACE MNP
THE HOUSE OF  COMMORS
LONDON

Dear Sir, . :
Re your letter of the 13,12,93, QVS, Dunblane

The leaflet, 'The Parliamentary Ombudsman ~ Can the Parliamentary Umbudsman
help you ?' describes the kinds of Complaint the PC can pursue: "Bad
administrations can take many forms...... discoutesy or harrassment, failling
to follow correct procedures......... Pravided the actions given rise to
your grievence are administrative actions...® (section 3)

" The Ombudsman has the power to inspect all official government files and
papers and can Summon anyone even Government ministers to give eveidence in
an investigation® ( section 5).

(BA = bad administration)

I am amazed, to say the least, that no mention in the PS's letter is made
of:

#% I had no jab description has a housemaster - I wrote my own (BA)

#+ Bo clear explanation was sought as to the underlying reasons for my
resignation in June 1991; <{(anyone in such a sensitive position resigning
mst surely be made clear as why he resigned — for the record ?) (BA)

*# No reponse to the harrassment and treatment on the day I left, 13,12,91;

no chance to be interviewed by the schpol administration to explain why I
wrote the letter (BA)

A2




t#+ Op what grounds was I relieved as housemaster ? W¥hat 'crime’ bhad I .
committed ? No mention ! (BA)

*t the lack of an efficient, effective complaints systen, other than the
Headmaster himself. (BA)

t* that sub-standard conditions were alld wed to exist for so long, (BA) and
why so many sweeping changes in the pastoral care in the schonl only took
place AFTER 1 wrote the letter to parents.

#+ That the HMI failed to consider the parent's response to such serious
allegations of bullying in my letter to parents, and completely ignored me
after I had left the schoul, as a reglstered and practicing Scottish
teacher.. :

st that the Headmaster alleged that I made a phone call to the school
relinquishing my position as housemaster and offering to hand over keys
etc.. This was 'supported’ by an unsigned, alleged statement from the
school log; this was a direct lie, I never made such a phonecall to the
schuol, only an internal call to the porter, procedure, to inform the
porter I was going out because I felt threatened, and would return after
dark to continue my duties in the house - I did return, only to find my
door of my home broken down.

Pleace pass this letter to the Ombudsman, for the recard.

Thankyou again for your help.

copies to: -
) @ %éa't’"f"/‘ S U

MORE INTRIGUE:

The Caok Repart enguiring about
QUSs on my behalf were told the
o

shaal is now closeq

IS IT CLOSED ?
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Commissione per le petizioni

La Presidente

Mr Glenn HARRISON

The Schoolhouse

Uyeasound

UNST |

GB - Shetland Islands ZE2 3DL

Subject: Petition No. 232/93

Dear Mr Harrison,

I would like to inform you that the Committee on Petitions continued its
examination of your petition at its meeting of 7 and 8 April 1994, taking due
account of the oral information provided by the European Parliament's Human
Rights Unit.

Moreover, the committee noted that folleowing your complaints in December 1991
of widespread bullying at Queen Victoria Scheol an independent investigation was
immediately carried out by Her Majesty's Inspectors of Schools in January 1992.

‘ The recommendations made in this report were taken forward by the school
authorities and an action plan was prepared. When HMI returned one year later
to evaluate progress at the school, they were reasonably satisfied that steps
had been taken to implement the recommendations contained in the report,
although scme of the recommendations were ¢f a long-term nature and would need
to be monitored. You are obviously aware of the aforementioned since you state
in your letter of 8 February 1994 that you have received both reports.

On the basis of this information, the Committee on Petitions considered that
your complaints had been taken extremely seriously and investigated by the
Chairman of the Board of Commissioners and the Bducation Department of the
Scottish Office and all serious efforts had been made to implement the
recommendations put forward in the first report.
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The committee considered, however, that it could not further investigate
other specific complaints raised in your petition, particularly concerning the
timely consultation of parents and your being informed by the appropriate
authorities. -

In the light of this the committee therefore decided to conclude its
examination of your petition.

Yours sincerly,

) /W\
Rosy/BINDI

Chairman
Committee on Petitions
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~THE SCHOOL HOUSE
UNST
SHETLAND ISLANDS
ZE2 9DL
DATE: 20,6,94
ROSY BINDI
CHAIRXAR OF THE COMKITTEE OX PETITIONS
EUROFPEAN PARLIAMERT
LUXENBOURG.
Dear Chairperson,
with regard to petition 232/93 and your letter of the
14.6,94.

My complaints are basically:

1> 0f maladministration of the school and their behaviour and reaction
toward me on the day the letter arrived to parents (13,12,91)

2) The failure of the HMI (SQED, Scottish Office Education Department) and
other responsible agents to consult parents either directly or indirectly,
as part af the original inspection conducted in January of 1992, to ensure
the Iinspection was conducted “thoroughly™.

I would like to answer your letter on all counts and present various
questions which, as yet remain unanswered. This letter presents my
obijections as a whole.

{I refer to three letters (1) from the ombudswan or Parliamentary
Commissioner (PC), (2) from the minister for education J Douglas-Hamiltan
SOED and (3) my letter, in part, of reply to the PC through my NP Mr J
Vallacel

taking parargraph 2.2, page 1 from the HNI first report of May 6 1992;

¥ There was no evidence of widespread, systematic bullying 1n the school
but some incidents had occured. The allegations made about the school in
December 1991 had exaggerated the situstion “.

Vhat body of ’evidence’ were the HNMI referring to ?

SOED letter from the Ninister for Education, paragraph 3: * Throughout the
enquiry the primary concern of the ANI was to Investigate the situation In
the school in relation to pastaoral care and pupil supervision rather than
investigate specific allegations of bullying *.

The HMI it appears, never investigated the bullying allegations.

So were the bullying allegations investigated ? Yes, paragraph 2: “ The
police enquired ipnto specific allegations of bullying ®. Letter from
Pariiamentary Commissioner (PC) paragraph 2: " His charges of bullying were
investigated by the police but the Procurator Fiscal subsequently decided
to take no further action.”

Vere the parents interviewed by the police ?
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Vere parents interviewed by the HNI ? . _
The SOED consider parents as "key partnérs® in the educational process:
® Parents now have new roles as customers and managers of schools. They can
exercise influence through parental choice of school and through parental
voice in school bopards and governing bodies.....They want their children to
have a happy and enjoyable time at school..... Parents and teachers are key
partrers 1n children’s education *. \

( see SOED publication ACTION ON DISCIPLINE IN THE SECORDARY SCHOOL,
support pack, 1993, Pamela Munn and Co., page 10, paragraphs 1 & 2 ).

Vhy then no record of a consultation with parents 7 Where 1s the “vaice™ of
the parents, schonl board or other governing body ? The key role of parents
as partners in the educational process is HOT a recent or new idea !

Vhere is the report from the MOD, those responsible for the schoal ?
Indeed, did the NOD conduct an enquiry of their own or did they leave {t in
the "safe hands®’ of the SOED and the police ?

Vhere then 1s the police report into the allegations of bullying ?

I would also like an answer to why the police thought it necessary to bash
down the door of my home with a sledge hammer on the day the letter was
received by parents, December 13 1991 !

Letter from the PC. paragraph 4: ® In so far as Mr Harrison's complaint may
be directed at the actions of the polfce on December 13 1691 I cannot
belp....I have no power to investigate complaints against them. The same iIs
true aof the Procuratpor Fiscal. *

AS REGARDS MY CONMPAINTS AGAYBST THE SCHOQOL ADNINISTRATIOR'S ACTIORS ARND MY
DISMISSAL AS BOUSEMASTER ON FRIDAY DECEMBER 13 1991: The PC’s letter
continues:

“ I can, 1n principle, investigate the administrative actions of the NOD
and the Scottish Office (including HN Inspectorate of Schools). However
vnder paragraph 10(1) of schedule 3 to the 1967 Act I am expressly
precluded from any action taken in respect of appointments or removals,
pay. discipline, superanpuation or other personnel matters in relation to
service in any office or employment, or under any cotract of services, in
respect of which power to take action, or to determine or approve the
actiop to be taken, in such matters Is vested 1n Her Majesty, any minister
of the Crown or any authority within the jurisdiction. Mr Harrison‘s own
complaint against the school (and by extension) MOD, relating as it does to
bis employment as a teacher, is caught by this exclusion which Parliament
bhas put upon my jurisdiction *.

Paragraph 6 of the letter: * I wouvld need to be shown some evidence of
administrative fault on their part as a result of which Mr Harrison might
reasonably claim to have sustained some unremedied iInjustice ®. All roads
are closed it appears. See letter to Mr J V¥Wallace 19,12,93. (relevant part
of the letter enclosed).

It seems that the whole incident was played down by labelling the
camplaints as Ap "exaggeration", but ceripus actions were takern however., by
the SOED and pastoral changes have taken place as a RESULT of my letter.

As regards other matters I believe I have been ignored.
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Vith reference to paragraph 2 of YOUR letter, regarding the HNI's
inspections: R R

It could be reasonably charged that the Inspection of QVS in January 1992
‘closed the door after the horse had bolted', making recommendations for
change 1n the pastoral and other arrangements for the school, AFTER my
letter was received by parents. How did these conditions come to exist in
the first place in the audit area of the Scottish Dffice ?

REGARDTRG THE ARSENCE OF COMMENTS FROR PARENTS ARD PUPILS FROM THE
ERQUIRY.

The European Parliament's letter 019554, 14,6,94: ~...taking due account
oral information provided by the European Parliament’s Human Rights unit®,
Bow were the ‘oral®’ arguments presented ? How am I to know that my case was
represented thoroughly and accurately ? The letter concludes: * The

commi ttee considered, however, that 1t could pot further 1nvestigate other
specific complaints raised in your petition, particularly concerning the
timely consultation of parents and your being informed by the appropriate
authorities *.

There is no clear, logical explanation as to WHY the European Parliament
“.. could not further investigate... particularly concerring... parents ®,

¥hy was I never questioned by the European Parliament ? For example: why
did I think it pecessary to write to parents direct ? And, Would it not
have been possible to bring about changes in the school in other more
discreet ways ?

It seems that the European Parliament offers a service to its citezens and
then finds clauses within the law, as 1t suites, to withdraw the service.

The whole matter could be resolved simply by inviting ALL parents of QVS
pupils in and before December 1991, to openly comment about their reaction
to my letter of the 11,12,91 in which I asked the parents to * Ask your son
to open wp without fear, and tell you himself . (paragraph 16)

Vould any caring parent or teacher, seeing or receiving a letter like this,
about their son (you have a copy). not be concerned about the serfousness
of the allegations ? The letter merely gave some examples af physical abuse
that had gone on for years long before I arrived and certainly did mot
represent the whole story; It was my hope that professicnals, trained to
counsel abused children would have the perception to realise the underlying
message in the letter. Vhat was the response of the children and response
of the parents ?

There is no evidence from any reports seen, either from comments of parents
as a whole or pupils, that my allegationz were unfounded, 'exaggerated' or
a malicious lie !

Vhy is {t that reports and/or comments from either pupils or parents,
including the puolice reparts are inaccessible ?

¥hy this reluctance to consuit parents by the SOED, the PC., the MOD and the
European Court ? Parents and pupil’s comments are the only source of
historical truth as oppused to narrative truth, and they are strangely
absent from the whole enquiry - silernt.
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THE EXCLUSION QF PUPIL'S COMMENTS AND PARENT'S REACTION.-~ WHY ?

(The MOD who were responsible for the QVS until April 1992 are completely
silent about the whole matter, pastoral recommendations however, have been
made {n other MOD schools eg Duke of York, Dover [House of Commons October
18921.)

Answers:

(a) The parents, most of them employees of the MOD, are told ‘not to meke
waves' and threatened (as I - was:a colleague at QVS) by the Official Secrets
Act and the loss of security through their of employment and prospects af
promotion, pemsions etc.

(b> Open, honest comments from pupils and parents would reveal years of
maladministration; unreported sexual, physical and deep emntional abuse.

The motive for 'a cover up' is weil founded.

The Official Secrets Act is there to defend the security of a nation and
must not be abused or misused eg hide child abuse or maladministration in
schaonols and institutions where children are cared for.

I would like you to know that this matter is not closed and I am far from
satisfied by the considerations of your committee which seem to evade the
real lssue here - the rights of parents, pupils and teachers to complain.
There are many parents that are infuriated by the treatment of their
children at QVS, in and before December 1991, but afraid to speak out.

It seems to me from this and other letters I have received that the
European Court is po more than a convenience to conceal the actions of
maladministrations of various government offices, a 'kangerco court!’
similar to those found in the old Soviet Unicon prior to Glasnost.

If the Furopean court cannot defend the rights of children and their
parent/teachers against maladwinistration, then perhaps the
Court/Parliament should consult its original charter and the freedom of the
rights of individuals. Child abuse is a very serious matter(Children Act
1989) and policles regarding standards and complaint procedures in this
area mist be consistent, clear and well defined across the European
Community. Presenting the wall of bureaucracy and officialdom is no excuse,
and in fact quite deplorable ! I look farward to hearing from you with
regard to my questions in the near future.

Yours sincerely,
G. Harrisomn

enclosed: ¥ Letter from the Parliamentary Commissioner 10, 12,93.

Letter sent by me to Mr J Wallace to be forwarded to the PC in
answer to his letter.

Letter from J.D. Hamilton, Minister for education. SOED.

A copy of your letter of the 14,6,94 addressed to me.

L ]

copies to: Euro MP, The General teaching Council for Scotland and many
various official groups and organicsations within the community.
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HOME NEWS 9

Bullying allegations are
rejected by inspectorate

ALLEGATIONS OF widespread and .
systematle bullying at a Perthshire
boarding school for the sons of
servicemen are rejected In a report
by HM Schools Inspectorgte,;pub},
lished yesterday. LS
The HMI report says that the
allegatlons, made public in Decem-
ber by former housemaster Glen
Harrlson, exaggerated the situation
at the 2683 pupil Queen Victoria
School in Dunblane, but confirms
that “persistent problems caused by
a small minority of boys” do exist.”

When all other optlons are
exhausted, the school may have to
expel regular or serious misbe-
havers, the report adds.

Mr Harrison, who resigned last
summer, wrote to parents claiming
that younger boys had been kicked
between the legs, punched In the
stomach while thelr mouths were -
held closed, forced to eat shower gel
and hit so hard that their noses were

broken. In one case, said Mr
Harrison, a boy was kicked 50 hard
he blacked out.

The report by Inspectors, brought

in ‘at the Instigation of the school’s:

commlissioners, calls for the school
to carry out a thorough review of its
“rigld and unwieldy” discipline
policy within In a wider review of
“pastoral care.”

In what appears to be a partial
vindication of Mr Harrison, who sald
the school’s management seemed to
be “a law unto themselves,” the
report stresses, “For real progress 1o
be made there will have to be
changes In management style and in
theﬂatdtudes of some members of
sm ')’

The report refers to “divisions and

tensions” between teachers, and .

teachers and management, and says
a slgnificant number of staff
regretted the abolition of corporal
punishment, and looked for some

other kind of sharp and summary
deterrent.

But with many parents living at a
distance, the option of suspension as
a' punishment was constrained,
while among the boys themselves
there was a feeling that punlshments
such as detentlon and “gating” were
Ineffective.

The Inspectors refer to “an unreal-
istlc expectation” among some staff
that swift and summary sanctions
would work with problem pupils.

The inspectors add that senlor
school prefects and monltors had
too much of a supervisory and
diselplinary role with regard to
younger hoys, and contrast the ease
with which a pupll could be disci-
plined for a very minor misdemean-
our with the lack of any co-ordinat-
ed reaction to patterns of offending.

. Headmaster Julian Hankinson
acknowledged the reports ﬂndlnfs
that the number of adults involved In

“pastoral care” at particular times
might have to be Increased.

“The school Is a very old building,
largely bullt as a barracks, and
geographlically It'ls diffleult for staff
to supervise unless the numbers are
increased,” he sald, “But by no
means whatsoever has discipllne
broken down.

“What the report does indicate Is
that there are some hoys who do
have soclal and behavioural
problems.”

Mr Hanklnson said that teachers
all over the country had found It
difficult to find alternatlve sanctions
following the abolition of corporal
punishment, and the problem was
awkward in a boarding school for
service children where puplls could
not be easlly expelled or suspended.

“Thig Is a problem that we have
been wrestling with for the last two
years, and hope with the ald of this
report to be able to solve,” he added.




THE SCOTTISH OFFICE

Edinburgh EHI 3TG

Telephone 031-244
Fax 031-244 4785

G Harrison Esq

The School House

Uyeasound

UNST

Shetland )

7ZE2 9DL .Y June 1994

Dear Mr Harrison

Thank you for your letter of 13 June addressed to Lord James
Douglas-Hamilton, Minister for Education, about your serious allegations
of bullying at Queen Victoria School, Dunblane and subsequent events.

I should first point out that HM Inspectors of Schools did not in fact
carry out an investigation into the allegations made by you in December
1991. The specific allegations of bullying were the subject of direct
investigation by the police. The then Minister for Education, Mr Michael
Forsyth, following receipt of a copy of your allegations instructed HM
Inspectors of Schools to conduct an enquiry into the provision which the
school made for the pastoral care and supervision of the pupils and
associated management arrangements. The conduct of the police enquiry,
the report of that enquiry and the results were not a matter in which the
Minister of Education could intervene. Indeed, the Minister has not seen
a copy of the police report of their enguiry, nor would it be appropriate
for him to do so.

The Minister, although aware of the referral of your complaint to the
Parliamentary Commissioner by Mr Jim Wallace MP, is not aware of the
results of that referral. Nor does he reguire to be made so aware since
the Parliamentary Commissioner appears to have considered that no
further action is necessary by him.

The guestion on whether the Minister of Defence, as founders of the
school, should have launched their own enquiry into your allegations is
entirely a matter for the Secretary of State for Defence.

I can assure you that the Minister for Education is satisfied that the
school have complied with the recommendations made following inspections
carried out by Her Majesty's Inspectors of Schools.

I cannot help you further.

Y f%\ sincerely
\ .
T A

ALAN McPHERSON
Registrar of Independent Schools

ABI03443.064
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QVS REPORT REVISON WORD PUZZLE

1

2

10

11

12

13

14

ip)
2)
3
4)
9)
6)
73
8)

9)

105
10
125
13)

L)

1%
169
17
18)
163
20
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Vorking together as a team - teamwork ? (3 groups together).

You have to do this saometimes to change things.

Vhat some official groups dao when they've made a mistake.

The pnlice use these to break down teacher's doors.

A law to protect children in institutions and schonls.

Like a Swiss Red Cross visitor, non—-parent, appointed not elected.
Key partners in the education process.

A law to defend the security of the nation, sometimes misused to hide
other things, ( a bit of a cheat this one )

CLEAR + experts with hammers with no "e’ and a 'y’ on the end.

A 'down under’ court trial where the key-witnesses are missing.

The real VIPs in a schoal - no connection with a prince !

A commou problem in army institutions often igpnored: B——-

Vhat the HRI call a investigation.

A political state where the Poiice and the army have tatal control,
people ignored and files are inaccessible to the public., Car you see
the mistake ?

'Clased ' sums the word, SHHHHH !

QVS palicy: "...when a housemaster writes to parents you ____  him'?
Ancgther term for maladwministration.

An HHI document that 'clased the gate when the horse had bolted*

Get the strength of the brotherhood arocund you ! ,

Fitting slogan: “The SOED, working to childrens,
parents and teachers rights !* 227
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A FINAL NOTE TO PARENTS AND GUARDIANS

Bullying and abuse can take many forms, serual, physical and emotional.
All forms of abuse can cause deep emotional and psychlogical harm.
Some believe that because its a tough world children have to learn to be
tough and take abuse in all its forms. The problem with this philosophy is
knewing how far to go, knowing the limits - children and some adults
cannot judge this.

There is a time and a place to be tough and ather ways and means of
developing the toughness and resilience to succeed. Recent research
has revealed that bullying and abuse can result in deep emotional
probiems which may remain concealed for many years only to emerge in
adulthood as serious psychological problems and behavioural habits. 1t is
believed that victims of abuse and bullying often become bullies
themselves, wifebashers and even worse.

One of the major proeblems is encouraging the child to be free to
complain, should the need arise. Encourage gour child to speak openiy
about what happens at school and listen very carefully to what is said
(and often what is hot said). Remember education is a partnership and is
a continuum from the schogol to the home and home to school. To
complain respectfully about justified maltreatment is not a weakness,
neither is it foolish. e

One of the problems in military schools, for esample, is that children
think they have to prove they are tough and ‘complaining’ often comes
over as a weakness and ‘not complaining’ as estra tough, an attitude
sometimes conueyed by their parents and teachers.

Assure your child he/she has a right to complain without fear or
appearing foolish to others. It is NOT normal to live in an atmosphere of
intimidation - no child or adult for that matter should have to run the
gauntiet of the bully !

PREDENTATIVUE MEASURES

Your child’s school brochure may already contain advice about how to
complain and be heard, should the need arise. If you are not sure, go and
see (or write to) the headteacher, especially if your child is placed in a
boarding school. A caring headteacher wiil not take offence at your
request and should be glad to supply you with details of the pastoral
arrangements and complaints procedures. Do not however take it for
granted; ensure that school policy is being implemented and CLEARLY
DEFINED in the school brochure. fre the guidtlines clear to the child for
instance? Most locat education authorities are very caring and just as
concerned as you are that your child gets a fair deal, and wilt be glad to
help you with any enquiries you have to make.
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QUEEN VICTORIA SCHOOL,
DUNBLANE,

PERTHSHIRE,

FK15 0JY.

Tel. Dunblane (0786) 822288
( Dunblane Military

Juliap D. Hankinson, M.A,
Headmaster

[y

FAX: 031-310-2519 or
Edinburgh Mil 2519

|

Mr G Harrison ’ '?’d_“m phone the school at [[ 17 March 1993

The School House  14-25 stating | wished to hand

Uyeasound - over keys etc,. {f that was 80O

Unst - what need would there be 1o | o ) aprer lay behind the broken :
Shetland Islands  bash down my door ? door of my home and | did not
ZE2 90L : get a chance to read it properly

) until | had left QVS.

Dear Mr Harrison

Your letter of 28 February 1993 to the Ministry of Defence has been /passed to me

for reply.

The following facts are pertinent to points you write of. On 20/ June 1991 you

formally gave a Term’s notice as Housemaster and Teacher at QVS. n 13 December,
1991, I wrote to you requirjng you to relinquish your role as/ Housemaster in
keeping with the terms of my Jetter to you of 28 June 1991. Although you did not
read my letter, you telephonefl the School on that afternoon at 1425 hrs and, among
other things, stated that you wished to hand-over your Housemaster’'s duties.
Later that afternoon, in my study, you told the Bursar and me thac yew wished to
"go at once". We agreed to your request. In short you chose to leave QVS when
you did and were paid up until 31 December 1991, the date of termination of your

notice,
May I also reiterate that it was Central Region Police and not the School who

decided to break down the door of your home.
v ‘l Oh yes | But why ? >

With regard to other points you raise in your letter to the Min\ster, I comment as
follows. The police c¢arried out their enquiries and subsequently concluded that

rther action was necessary. _~fut what about the abusea
S—— : L ;

no
An jindependent enquipyés initiated by the GOC and was conducfed\by Her Majesty’s
Inspectors of Sch s. Her Majesty’s Inspectors are a high respected force who
provide an indepéndent audit of educational provision throughout Scotland. Your
comments abo bias are at odds with our experience of the i vhich was

undertakep” in a thorough and objective manner regulting inm a number of
LRCOLE the School. As part of that Inspection, every

acicns for actionm by
nare nﬁqm the Chief Inspector asking them to comment on any

received a letter
maftir concerning the pastoralcare and supervision of pupils. The Army did not
ar

out an investigation: that was done by the police and HMI.

in 1932, the School has implemented their

As a nesult of the HMI Inspection i
recommendations. HMTI have rece;:}y\re-visited the School to evaluate our
response\to their recommendations and their findings will be published in the near
future. hN
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CONCLUSION S

This report contains only brief details of what really
happened at QVS in the time | was housemaster and teacher
from August 1989 to December 1991; but the full story would
require the best part of a substantial book. When the public
saw QVS, they saw an imposing grey building, plaids blowing in
the breeze and the sway of the kilt; a little army marching to
the sound of the pipes, sending shivers of pride down the spine.
What they did not see is the sadness behind the painted smile
of little soldiers, and the fear. Not all boys, however have been
unhappy ! Especially the bullies. And not all boys will tell
their parents what happened to them or indeed what they did to
other boys; but for the sake of those unhappy boys, AND THOSE
YET TO COME IN OTHER SIMILAR SCHOOLS, | did what | had to do
as a responsible parent and teacher.

Perhaps you too, the reader, may be curious

and want some straight answers to ensure that this situation
never happens again and ask yourself: If this was allowed to
happen in Scotland, in a government institution, then is it
happening right now in many other schools and institutions
across Britain and Europe ?

There is a clear need for a statutary body to formulate and
implement fair agreed policies regarding the treatment of
pupils, parents and teachers, in ALL schools, producing
complaints procedures that are clearly defined across the
Eurapean Community.

If you are concerned about the treatment of pupils, parents
and teachers you may as an individual or a group like to write
to the SOED, MOD or the headmaster of the school. Perhaps you
will suceed where | failed and get some satisfactory answers;
or face a wall of silence as | have for over two and a half
years. Have courage - they are only faceless names and
annonymous committees, but OUR children are the seeds of
tomorrow, the aduits and professionals of the future, our
greatest resource. They are not pawns to fill school - roll
quotas ! They have a right to be happy in a disciplined and
caring environment.



Whether you believe the contents of this report to be the
" truth, an exaggeration or tall story is up to you as the
reader to decide, but just remember: that this happened
in a school in Scotland in this decade in the audit area
of the SOED. Maybe it is easier for you to just ignore it
and pretend it never really happened, living under the
delusion that those skilled professionals we look to for
guidance with respect and confidence are incapable of
such errors. It is indeed sad to realise that those we
often trust most implicitly fail to uphold their own
standards that we strive daily to maintain. You may
even be afraid, like so many groups and authorities |
have dealt with over the last two and half years, and do
not want to 'rock the boat'; but sometimes we have to
‘rock the boat' in order to bring change and positive
growth.

There is indeed a lesson to be learned for all here. As
we approach a new century and look back over the years
and decades of the past, we will perceive the painful
mechanism of change and the need for 'men and women of
vision' to allow space and growth and guide the direction
of that growth and change:

"Where there is no vision, the people perish"
Solomon

Queen Victoria School was an anachronism, a

'‘prehistoric’ relic of a bygone age and living proof of
Solomon's wisdom, and who knows how long the system
would have persisted had | not acted and taken the
appropriate steps to ensure forward, positive change and
growth.

GLENN HARRISON JUNE 1994



And the woman who held her babe against her bosom said: Speak to us of
Chi ldren,

And he (the prophet) said:

Your children are not your children,

They are the sons and daughters of Life's longing for itself,

Thay come through you but not from you,

And though they are with you yet they belong not to you,

You may give them your love put not your thoughts,

For thay have their own thoughts,

You may house their bedies buwt not thelr souls,

For thefir souls dwell in the house of to-morrow,

which you cannot visit, not even In your dreams,

You may strive to be like them, but sesk not to make them like you,

For life goes nat backward nor taries with yesterday,

You are tha bows from which your children as living arrows are sent forth,
The archer sees the mard wpan the path of the infinite, and He bends you
with His might that His arrows may go swift and far,

L=t your bending in the Archer’s hand be for gladness;

For even as MHe loves the arrow that flies, s0 Ha loves also the bow that is

stable,

trom THE FROFHET by Kahlil Gibran
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Lessons of Dunblane tragedy
will be ignored at our peril -

IT WAS good of C Martin
McGibbon (grand secretary of
the Grand Lodge of Scotland)
to write to your paper con-
(irming that Dunblane killer
Thomas Jlamilton was never a
member of his organisation
(I.etters. August 23). Howev-
¢r, William Burns (Letters, 16
August) is correct in stating
that many peaple were flab-
bergasted that the Cullen In-
quiry seemcd to ignore Hamil-
ton’s Masonic affiliation. It is a
question that has never been
addressed, which is why the
issue of Freemasonry canmnot
be disregarded.

While William Paul’s article
(Spectrum, August 9) was
very moving - referring to “the
wanton ending of so many
unsullied young .lives” - his
analysis was simplistic and
lacking. To describe Hamilton
as “a previously harmless lon-
er” is to ignore the weight of
evidence 1n the Cullen Report
that demonstrates very clearly
that lie was not regarded as a
harmless loner, not even by
the police.

According to The Scotsman
(March 22, 1996), a Senior
Scottish’ Freemason  told- the
paper that Hamilton had been
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different lodges. Given the g p
idence we now have about thé®
numbers of senior police of%
ficers who are themselves’
Freemasons, the link between,,
Freemasonry and Hamiltorn's
actions, both-prior to Marchy
13, 1996, and on that day’
must be examined if we are.
ever to find the “satisfacto
answer to the question why" 3
thar William Paul believes we'
will never know. J

Whether Hamilton was alv
Freemason or an ex-Freema-.
son (thus presumably anti-
masonry), the lack of any ex- .
ploration of this isspe and the:
total unaccountability of Cen:
tral Scotland Police (bar one.
resignation), leaves a festeritig
wound over the already mas-
sive scar of Dunblane. !

To simply describe Hamiltor
as a “warped human being”
doesn’t do justice to the com-
plexity of an individual’s re-
lationship with certain organ-
isations, be it the police, local :
government or the Masonic
lodge. . '

The pernicious influence of :
Freemasonry on all our public’
bodies ~ and potentially on the
new Scottish parliament - is
ignc:red at our p’erﬂ
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Addendum to Q.V.S. Complaint Document

e The ex-housemaster’s synopsis of events as related to a journalist in 2003.




Personal and in confidence to Davy

QVS “I am convinced it was a mason conspiracy, MOD, HMI, HMCs, military top brass
and others. The matter was a covered up to protect people in high Office In
Government.” I know nothing of the conditions inside the school as it is now. I can only
describe to you my beliefs and feelings about the school as it was 12 years ago. [ have
had reporters and journalists time and time again. I have had enough. All they want is a
story, ‘here to day and gone tomorrow’. There is nothing new here, this is not a
revelation, I do not have videos, written statements or lists of names or secret documents.
Everything I know is here printed below.

I cannot tell you everything, it would take too long and I am trying to forget it now. Until
Robbie phoned about six weeks ago and introduced me to Tom Minogue it was all gone
and past. All of the letters/literature I wrote is lost now; I had to give it up; my wife
pleaded with me to forget the past and just get on with life. I am lucky to have a job at all.

The background

In order to get a true picture of QVS we need to go back to the 19" century, the old
colonial days of Gordon, Kitchener, Rhodes and Baden Powell. Where Eton and Harrow
were templates of all good schools that bred young men fit to rule an empire. Where
bullying and survival of the fittest was the order of the day -Tom Brown eat your heart
out!

QVS begins in the later days of the colonisation of Africa. 1899 saw the Boer war and if
you look on any war memorial for that war the bulk of the names are Scottish. Most of
the soldiers killed were Scottish and in 1900 there were so many orphans in Scotland a
petition was sent to the Queen. As a result she set up a Royal charter for the school, to
care for the sons of Scottish Servicemen — it was indeed a noble cause. In 1902 the
building started and the school officially opened in 1908. There is also a sister school in
Dover called the Duke of York and both schools operated on the same lines. In WW2
both schools operated together in Dunblane where it was safe from bombs. But originally
QVS was not a school, it was an orphanage, and boys were taught trades and raised as
prospective soldiers for future wars or military conflicts; boys who would become men,
‘young men fit to rule or serve an empire’.

Here a young man would have a golden opportunity of being provided for by the state.
Imagine a poor boy from the poor areas of Glasgow (in the Edwardian times) being
financed through private military school! There were many applicants and long waiting
lists. In 1990 it costs almost twice as much to send a pupil through QVS as Eton! Each
boy would have standard issue, boy-size clothes. In 1990 a single kilt alone cost over
£350-00 each. From socks to vests and underpants and full military dress boy-size
uniforms, English redcoat-red. They would be able to follow in the footsteps of his father,
learn a trade, basic literacy and learn the pipes, drums or both. It was a school for the
sons of squaddies, not officers, but always to strive for the same standards on the sports
field and military fetes. He would learn how to lead, be tough, strong, how to use and



assemble weaponry of all kinds, and most of all be trusted with secrets. But there was
something else — going to QVS meant joining a brotherhood that spans decades, and old
boys association and was/is very strong. QVS was/is a regiment in its own right, with its
own colours and traditions, and each boy wears his father’s regimental insignia on his
uniform and pipes. The sound of the pipes would send shivers down the spine, little
soldiers in bright red tunics with hunting Stuart kilts would march in perfect formation,
their Glenn Garry tassels blowing in the wind and their shoes so polished you use them as
a mirror.

What could be more perfect? Much of the school business was shrouded in secrecy and
was protected behind the OSA. Even the finances was often hidden and many of the
traditions were unwritten and rituals were common, trials of strength and stamina run by
the older boys who endured suffering themselves as young boys and felt duty bound to
continue the tradition. Fagging was common, young boys treated brutally by older boys
which was tolerated by the staff. Bullying is good for you! Teachers would teach boys
and boys teach other boys and so adfinitum.

The sound of boots marching and sergeant majors screaming commands and boys
obeying, ‘Yes, Sa!” ‘No, Sa!”. Black cars with official Insignia arrived and Officers with
Sam brown and stick under their arms visited the school, saluting and almost goose-
stepping around the place, were held in great reverence. Boys saluted saying ‘Sa!’. On
Parent’s day and parades, the parents were almost afraid of the staff and very submissive,
especially the mothers. The children were taught not to complain, never to tell because
this was weakness and who knows you might break down under interrogation by the
enemy one day, so do not tell anything ‘we are training you up for this’ how easy it is to
fool young boys.

Father: How are you son?

son: Fine...but dad they.........:

Father: stand up straight son

Son: But dad they...they...?

Father: never complain son, a real man doesn’t complain, never complain

Son: yes dad, OK

Father: A good man doesn’t complain son, right! That’s life son, that’s the way it goes
Mother: and your father may be promoted to major soon and think of the pension when
he retires!’

Son: ....well....errrr.....well I guess I must be OK then.

The parents rarely knew of the secret horrors that awaited their sons, broken bones which
happened when they fell down the steps or an ‘accident’ in rugby — rugby! haaa there’s
an excuse! A bully’s paradise and the teachers just turned a blind eye — part of school
tradition, we must not interfere, they have to learn to be tough”. Several staff were ex-
Navy sub-mariners and commanders. Boys had no one to speak to, to pour their hearts
out to. I was approached in the early hours of the morning by boys. I was horrified and
afraid of what they told me. There were no guidance teachers, advisors. Matrons were




just skivvies and trained to get on with their work and keep their mouths shut. It was like
stepping back in time! QVS was/is an anachronism. I was to learn that many teachers
were masons, as was the head teacher and another housemasters, and of course, the man
who ran the show, The Brigadier. Boys were told that women were there to obey and
behave or be beaten by bigger, stronger men. Women Full time teachers only came in
after 1992. Housemaster and teachers having signed OSA were loath to discuss personal
problems, pensions were at stake, promotions and futures. We had to write reports and
99% of complaints were filed in the bin. Parents, usually serving military were loath to
complain lest their promotion or pension prospects were endangered. Dealings were
mainly through their COs.

Housemasters used to be army majors but then they brought Civvies in, in the 70s to cope
with increasing academic challenges. When I was originally for interviewed the job I told
the head teacher that nothing stands still or it stagnates, that my intention was to keep
abreast of modern education developments to bring the school out of the 19" Century and
into the 90s and prepare for a new 21% Century. He seemed to like that and I got the job
based on my experience after five years previously working in a boarding school in
Shropshire.

I was in for a shock! Older boys were allowed to use younger boys as slaves. Naughty

boys were given to older boys to punish (fagging) - I was told this was traditional — an
unwritten code and I would not understand their ways because this was Scotland and |

was English. I strongly objected and started to question the older boys, to write reports
objecting to these traditions. As time went by more and more boys opened up and told
the most dreadful and appalling stories. I fell into disrepute among staff. The Brigadier
and military contingencies (the real rulers of the school) wanted me out. (Headteacher

gave me an excellent reference before I left, by the way!)

I was in for a shock! One of the main problems was who do you complain to? There was
no clear complaints procedure. There were official looking bodies of people called HMCs
who spoke with posh , authoritative English accents who would pretend to be
considering your written complaints, in mock complaints meetings, who took months
to answer a single letter with no real answer at all! They even posed as a committee
representative to appear sympathetic and take notes as you spoke, then when you had
gone tear it all up and throw in the bin. I was told this had gone on for years! Meanwhile
I would be fooled into thinking the procedures were being followed, but never a word
came back.. I found out later the reports were never filed and recorded at all and the
HMCs mysteriously gone, non-existent.

It all started when I refused to go to tea with a prince. “You fool” other staff said,
“you have ruined a great career and a good pension!” I was alarmed at the brutality and if
it was the last thing I did I would stop it once and for all — job or no job. I was naive to
think it would be all so easy. My wife and I refused to go to our places by the side of
Prince Andrew at the mess meal table, in protest at the many unheard voices and
suffering of young boys. I told the brigadier to stop playing soldiers and “get his act
together”. No one had ever spoken like that to him before. Some of the stories the boys



told me were horrifying and I found myself fighting for the child’s right to complain
and be heard, and be happy, to grow up in a caring, family atmosphere of trust I
recalled the poet’s words:

“for we can house their bodies but not their souls — for their souls dwell in the house of
tomorrow where you cannot come, not even in your dreams” (Children from The Prophet
Khalil Gibran).

I said on several occasions that some day, I believe, one of these boys will pick up a
machine gun, which he was trained to use at QVS, and murder innocent people in a
shopping Mal or public place, because he was abused and deeply disturbed as a child at
QVS. “When?” they ask: I don’t know, it’s time bomb, that the results of secret
organisations and people are allowed to act with impunity. We all have an accounting and
a responsibility to these lads! They do not belong to the Ministry of Defence they are
our responsibility, they are the seeds of tomorrow and they have a right to be happy and
grow up in a disciplined and caring environment, whether its Scotland or anywhere else
on earth.

I told the police, the social service, child-line, Esther Rantzen and others NSPCC, and
dozens of agencies; all of them ignored me. I eventually wrote to parents and told them
that their children did not belong to the MOD, but to them,| and the children’s welfare
was all that mattered; that their children have a right to be here and be happy. That
joining the army is not the only career and its OK if they like poetry and literature and
hate Rugby, because we are all different; that there are many battles in life and not all of
them are won with guns and brutality. I told the head teacher this was no way to run a
school in the 90s and that the MOD were not genuinely concerned with the educational
process or care of the young. But alas! The powers were above him, he was more of a
figurehead, a puppet ruler under command of the brigadier.

There was confusion between the culture of secrecy and genuine confidences which are
in place to protect the innocent.

As housemaster I saw myself acting in Loco Parentis and | wanted to know where the
boys were, what they were dong and whether they were happy or otherwise. Boys would
go away on weekend military camps and with the brigadier to his home or homes of top
brass or HMC or High society Perthshire people, Fiscals Sheriffs, Police Officials. They
had to take their kilts and clean underwear and I was not given a contact address. What
went on at these parties was secret but some boys were very disturbed. Older boys with
younger boys. I became disturbed too, screams in the dorm at night, empty beds, rituals
in dark places and used warm, filled, condoms hurriedly abandoned; fear throughout
every age group. And the teachers knew about it. I complained but was ignored.

I was advised to get out. What was I supposed to do? I had no pastoral training, and no
one to talk to. I told the Police and social Services but to no avail. The staff cut me off,
missiles thrown at my window, and I was warned to keep my mouth shut. I was living
dangerously in a Mason stronghold. I picked the phone up one day and I was growled at,




like a bear was on the other end. I was fuming mad to say the least!! Eventually the
Police came and bashed down the door of home and took House cash and House records,
then arrested me, took me to Dunblane Police station where I was interviewed for over an
hour by [special detectives brought from Edinburgh| Never from that day to this have I
had any explanation for that action. In 1993/94 1 took the sword again and found I was
totally blocked and alone. They owe me a lot more than an explanation.

I wrote to Andrew Mellor in 1992/3, Scotland’s guidance advisor at the time and he was
appalled and showed a determination to help me. Then suddenly out of the blue he was
promoted to Chief Bullying Officer and the communicating stopped.

Hamilton’s friend, fellow housemaster and primary teacher Ben Philip, (Mason), died
aged 44 in some freak accident in the school hall in December 1993 (!?) I think that
Philip’s death was suspicious to say the least; I think he was a man with a conscience and
about to crack ...... and a brother mason surgeon filled in the death certificate with an
appropriate bogus cause of death. If I had have stayed at QVS I would have been dead
too. Jim Wallace helped me as my MP, but said he hit a brick wall. The MOD threw the
OSA at me, the HMI virtually ignored me, shame on them! But Wallace forced them (94)
to send me a progress report to show the details of changes that had been brought in the
school since I left a female AHT has been appointed, and the introduction of individual
rooms instead of dorms, and last but not least, girl pupils!

So here we have the stage set which led to 16 children and teacher lying needlessly
dead in a Dunblane graveyard. What possible connection is there? Two dead men, a
gun club, vulnerable little boys and a nest of masons. These deceitful men have been
hiding behind a screen of apparent respectability for decades, centuries even, high-
ranking respectable persons preying on young boys who were conditioned to remain
silent, thinking they were heroes by not telling. Not all boys were abused and these were
often the abusers and bullies themselves, and will be in a hurry to defend the honour of
the school.

In the HMDI’s report I was accused of exaggerating, but they never interviewed me
or spoke with me at all, not did they send me a report. It was as if I did not exist.

There were serious reports of abuse in the fifties that never made it out of the QVS gates!
Paedophilia is not new, it was and is today a huge problem, a cancer in society. All
hidden behind the OSA! Even Dickens tried to expose it and we can see some the
characters like Oliver Twist and the Beadle. Dickens was told that he would not have sold
his books if he told too much. This is what I firmly believe but cannot prove, try as I will:
QVS was a perfect cover for institutional physical and sexual abuse, at first, orphan boys
and, on and off, over decades QVS has supplied children (with sealed lips) for abuse,
“Where the carcass is, there the eagles gather”. They were accessible to ‘eagles’ like
top brass military, politicians, Police Officials, Sheriffs, Fiscals and successful business
people in Perthshire, and fools like me could be squashed, swallowed up or sent to some
island somewhere. They all gather at the water hole. Outrageous you say? There are
similar stories from Wellbeck college and Duke of York, where names of the famous are




well known associations including famous Statesmen. The link is , masters of
secrecy and deception, which is where Hamilton comes in to the story, the weak link in
the powerful chain of abusers. Here we have a perfect situation where boys, sworn to
secrecy and parents under orders to keep quiet, helpless to complain. Hamilton was
unbalanced and had power by knowledge. This is why he was allowed to have guns.
He was in on the secret and knew names of those other paedophilic members.

If those names get out even now after 12 years there will be a riot and the press will have
a field day! Lives and careers will be ruined! Is this why Hamilton’s file went missing
only hours after the Killings? Is this why Lord Cullen who I believe was a QVS
Commissioner, was appointed to preside over the Hamilton investigations? This is how
Masons operate, they control everything and their allegiance is to each other. No wonder
they want a 100-year embargo on the Hamilton case!

HMC were invited into Office not appointed by interview, and included head teachers,
Police, top military Brass (retired), Fiscals and generally rich, high Society people. Iain
Laing was chief Commissioner of QVS in 1990/91. After I complained in 1991 these
HMC:s suddenly disappeared into thin air. But I got nowhere. I am just a foolish teacher,
Mr nobody, who they squashed like a fly, the proverbial fool on the Hill, “the man with a
thousand voices talking perfectly loud...but nobody ever hears him...they know he’s just
a fool” (Beatles 1967).

And I spoke out long before Hamilton committed his crime. The Police knew this
man had an unhealthy interest in little boys and guns and that he was a friend of the
Police and QVS a frequent visitor to the shooting range. I saw him but I had no idea
who he was at the time. I was never a member of any gun club, just a teacher doing
my job caring for boys.

I am most angry at the HML. I confided in them with details. My allegations were never
investigated except by the Police and their file remains closed to all including
Wallace, my MP. But the HMI betrayed a teacher. They never interviewed me — no one
ever did — I did not exist! They interviewed pupils and parents who were briefed by the
MOD and known to be loyal to the QVS management. QVS was under their auspices.
They failed the community and destroyed their own credibility. The English HMI were
frozen into disbelief when I copied the material to them in London in 1994, and the GTC,
of which I am a registered member, were equally helpless. In 2000 at the inspection of
Baltasound Junior High School, I called them to a private meeting; the HMI were
positively uneasy with me and ‘bit my head off” when I referred to the QVS.

I did some research some years ago and found that masons are not only an anachronism
but are powerfully implicated in nearly all cases of institutional abuse of orphan children
going back over years in England, Wales and Scotland, Dickens’s Beadle lives! Even if
they are not direct perpetrators of abuse, they hide or disappear vital files that prevent the
matter from going to court, appoint bogus fellow mason investigators like Lord Cullen -
and all to protect their brethren and their own reputations. Biblical language is the only
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way I can think of aptly describing masons: “this brood of serpents”, “these whitewashed
graves full of dead men’s bones”? Secret societies bring shame to Scotland.

Circles and windmills

Why don’t old boys, now men, complain? Because they are invited into the ‘care’ of ‘the
mason fold’ with all its privileges - wheels within wheels, windmills and circles? This is
the way secret societies perpetuate themselves. Would you want people to know how you
were treated at QVS if you had a young wife and a family? The old boys association is
very, very strong and mason controlled. Not all boys were abused, maybe only a
relatively small percentage. Expect hundreds to rally to the defence of QVS! who will
say how wonderful were their days at QVS.

The most precious resource is people! How can we raise up a new nation, as part of a
cancerous system based secret societies? Scotland is a new nation full of talent and
tremendous natural resources. The young are the seeds of tomorrow, our scientists,
lawyers, all kinds of professionals, a responsible electorate - the young people — the
Scotland of tomorrow? Somebody has got to stop masons!

My wife once described me as a general going into battle - with no army. Yes, I would
like justice to be done and masons discredited, but I have done my bit. Maybe some day
someone will have the courage (and good luck) to tear down that barrier and expose that
secret societies who hide behind respectability and use their fellow human beings to
satisfy their own gratification and desire — and then further abuse their power to cover it
all over for 100 years, when they are safe, long gone from the scene and not accountable
any more. Is it any wonder they want their membership of the lodge to be a secret!

They may say: who is this man who says such terrible things? Let him stand in a Court of
Law and prove it! I can’t, not now. I am just an ordinary teacher, not even promoted.
Who am I to stand up against the might of the MOD who have sent countless men to their
deaths in war, or tell the proud Cullen that he is corrupt and shames his countrymen?

If I had had help all those years ago and responsible agencies had seen the proverbial ‘red
light for danger’, AND INVESTIGATED MY ALLEGATIONS THOROUGHLY, then
maybe Thomas Hamilton could have been stopped, blacklisted and disarmed by a
responsible Central Police Force.

And maybe, just maybe, those wee graves in a cold Dunblane graveyard would be green
grass. Maybe there would be still another dedicated teacher like Gwen who died so
bravely, and maybe, just maybe another 16, twelve year olds, like the pride of Scotland’s
youth, paused ready to be launched into their lives as a new nation is born!

I have climbed the great mountain and crossed the wide river, I have put my job and life
on the line - I can do no more. I’ve had enough and my family have suffered too; now I




want to go home to myself. For my sins, I have settled in my exile on this most northerly
Isle; I have fought the battle and lost, and now I want to tend my oysters in peace. Let
others fight the battle, I’ve had enough. I cannot answer any more question, give names
or details, videos. If you want answers to the Hamilton killings then QVS is the place to
go and DIG. I would like to be left in peace, I can do no more now.

GH





